Minimum requirements for Retail Brands Goods and unpackaged food products integrity

of

ALBERT Česká republika, s.r.o.

THIS DOCUMENT SUMMARIZES THE FUNDAMENTAL REQUIREMENTS AND PUBLICLY COMMUNICATED OBLIGATIONS CONCERNING PRODUCT SAFETY, SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY IN THE PRODUCTION AND ACQUISITION PROCESS, POPULATION HEALTH, THE ENVIRONMENT ETC. AND, AS SUCH, IT IS RELEVANT FOR ALL RETAIL BRAND GOODS AND UNPACKAGED FOOD PRODUCTS OF ALBERT ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA, S.R.O.

Version 1.0

AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT ON THE BASIC TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR THE PRODUCTION AND SALE OF RETAIL BRAND GOODS (FOOD)/(NON-FOOD)

Validity: as of 1 May 2022

Contents

- 1 General information
 - 1.1 Own Brand definition
 - 1.2 Minimum general requirements
 - 1.3 Traceability

2 Product safety

- 2.1 SAR (Safety Assurance Regime)
- 2.2 Food safety
- 2.3 Non-food safety
- 3 Product integrity
 - 3.1 FAR (Fraud Approach Regime)
- 4 Sensory and laboratory product evaluation
- 5 Sustainability
 - 5.1 Sustainability principles

6 Health

- 6.1 General information
- 6.2 Ingredients
- 6.3 Vegetarian products
- 6.4 Vegan products

7 Packaging

- 7.1 Packaging
- 7.2 Product specification administration
- 7.3 Labelling

1 General information

1.1 Retail Brand Goods definition

- Products offered to customers in Albert Česká republika, s.r.o. ("Albert Česká republika") supermarkets and hypermarkets which belong to one of the following categories: private brands, luxury brands (own private brands labelled with an original brand owned by Albert Česká republika, e.g. the Excelent line), exclusive brands (delivered in the Czech Republic exclusively to Albert Česká republika and, in some cases, in Greece, Serbia or Romania to companies belonging to the Ahold Delhaize group), i.e. not international, national or regional brands, products produced in the stores (food products prepared in the stores including counter sale), products unlabelled by the Producer (such as unpackaged fruits/vegetables as well as all unpackaged food or non-food products, i.e. where Albert Česká republika is the importer).
- In short any original product not labelled with an international, national or regional brand.

1.2 Minimum general requirements

- The requirements set in this Amendment apply to all operating facilities (organizational units) of Albert Česká republika (Albert stores, distributions centres and headquarters).
- The Supplier of Albert Česká republika Retail Brand Goods must comply with the requirements always set in this Amendment.
- The requirements set in this Amendment also apply to distributors. In addition, distributors must comply with the relevant Global Food Safety Initiative standards (see more at https://mygfsi.com).
- The Supplier must subscribe to the Agreement on the Basic Terms and Conditions for the Production and Sale of Retail Brand Goods Albert Česká republika, including the Ahold Standards of Engagement.
- The production must comply with the product specification and the applicable contractual terms.
- The products must always comply to the specifications entered in Albert Česká republika's product specification database. Product labelling must always comply with the specifications.
- Albert Česká republika must immediately be notified of any changes and/or discrepancies concerning a product, product specification, labelling or the places or methods of production.
- The Supplier must be available 7 days a week in the case a need for resolution of quality discrepancies arises.
- The Supplier and Albert Česká republika have implemented procedures and processes for effective product recall. The procedure must be reviewed and tested at least once a year together with Albert Česká republika Quality Department to ensure that the process is maintained up-to-date and functional.
- The responsible Supplier must ensure the following for Albert Česká republika's market:
 - if necessary, register/notify the product to the local authorities (e.g. Toxicological Information Centre, Cosmetic Products Notification Portal);
 - cooperate with recycling organizations and pay all the required regulatory fees to ensure compliance with all the legislative requirements concerning products and packaging.

1.3 Traceability

- Traceability (tracing, tracking, monitoring) is an effective means of identifying, tracking and tracing constituents of a product back to the product's origin and the raw goods from which it is made.
- The traceability of products supplied is one of the fundamental requirements for cooperation with Albert Česká republika in the delivery of Retail Brand Goods.
- All products must be traceable back from the raw goods sources to the final production stage.
- The information on product traceability must be obtainable at all times from the end Supplier and must be provided on request within the extent of hours (depending on the specific situation) as agreed between the Supplier and Albert Česká republika.
- If the deadline referred to in the preceding paragraph is not met, the Supplier will immediately inform Albert Česká republika.

2 Product safety

The Producer must ensure Quality Control (QC) at all production stages. Albert Česká republika will
control quality and perform supply chain risk assessment. The Safe Assurance Regime assessment
(SAR Assessment) results for individual Suppliers and products will be used to set internal checks and
controls level for every product.

2.1 SAR (Safety Assurance Regime)

Albert Česká republika performs SAR Assessment for all Retail Brand Goods annually.

SAR main objectives:

- Albert Česká republika's ability to assure safety or control safety on the basis of the SAR Assessment results.
- Supplier/Producer product safety assurance enhancement.

SAR Key Factors:

- the basic risk inherent in the product
- supply chain risk (Producer risk)

SAR categorization matrix

SAR levels are assessed by the product risk level and the Producer risk level as shown in the table below. After SAR Assessment, every Retail Brand Goods product is placed in the relevant category /segment/ in accordance with the table below and with a corresponding internal controls level.

SAR food categorization matrix

Supplier Risk Product Risk	Low	Medium	High
Low 🔻	SAR 1 1. GFSI recognised certificate	SAR 1 1. GFSI recognised certificate	SAR 1 1. GFSI recognised certificate
Medium	SAR 1 1. GFSI recognised certificate	SAR 2 1. SAR 1 requirements include agreement with the Supplier/Producer for monitoring (e.g. KPI's) aimed at known failures.	SAR 2 1. SAR 1 requirements include agreement with the Supplier/Producer for monitoring (e.g. KPI's) aimed at known failures.
High	SAR 3 SAR 2 compliance with the requirements of subcontractors of Producers and Suppliers of risk subcomponents before the final production stage must be evidenced by GFSI recognised certificate.	SAR 3 SAR 2 compliance with the requirements of subcontractors of Producers and Suppliers of risk subcomponents before the final production stage must be evidenced by GFSI recognised certificate.	 SAR 4 SAR 3 requirements Highest GFSI certificate level Checking GFSI audit reports with a focus on discrepancies Product testing (annually against the recorded specifications) Visits to production facilities The risk subcomponents supply chain is transparent

2.2 Food safety

All Suppliers must comply with Regulation (EC) No 178/2002 laying down the general principles and requirements of food law and, especially, Regulation (EC) No 852/2004 (SANCO/1955/20050/Rev.3) and Regulation (EC) No 2073/2005 on microbiological criteria for foodstuffs which includes, among other things, the obligation of all Suppliers to identify and monitor critical control points, implement effective monitoring processes and, if the monitoring shows a lack of control over a critical control point, to adopt corrective measures. All Suppliers must regularly notify Albert Česká republika on the results of critical control points monitoring and immediately alert Albert Česká republika to any problems concerning any supplied product. The Supplier must notify Albert Česká republika on any negative findings of food safety inspections by food safety authorities and/or the certifying entities.

All Suppliers and Producers of Albert Česká republika's Retail Brand Goods must be certified for at least one of the standards accepted by GFSI (Global Food Safety Initiative). You can find an up-to-date list of GFSI recognised schemes here: http://www.mygfsi.com/about-gfsi/gfsi-recognised-schemes.html.

In cooperation with Albert Česká republika Quality Department, Suppliers are required to comply with certain additional specific requirements on the basis of the SAR Assessment as suitable or necessary with respect to their particular deliveries (see above).

The production and deliveries of fruits and vegetables (fresh fruits and vegetables, processed fresh fruits, fresh fruit juices, frozen fruits and vegetables and fresh sliced fruits and vegetables) and aquaculture products must have a certificate conforming with GLOBALGAP or other recognised agricultural product assurance systems. You can find an up-to-date list of recognised schemes for agricultural production here: http://www.mygfsi.com/about-gfsi/gfsi-recognised-schemes.html.

As far as deliveries of fruits and vegetables, and products made from fruits and vegetables, are concerned, Albert Česká republika requires a maximum of 50% residue limit of pesticides (50% MRL). This requirement is in addition to GlobalGAP certification.

2.3 Non-food safety

In compliance with Directive 2001/95/EC on general product safety, only safe products, i.e. products not endangering health and safety of persons or their property, may be delivered. This includes the obligation to supply consumers with information enabling them to assess and prevent risks related to the product.

REACH

All products (including packaging) must comply with the requirements of Regulation (EC) No 1907/2006 concerning the Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals (REACH), including its Annexes and the Substances of Very High Concern Candidate List (SVHC). The use of SVHC in products and packaging is not permitted and must be gradually phased out within twelve (12) months as of the publication date of a substance on the Candidate List.

Suppliers of products classified as chemical substances or preparations must comply with all the requirements of Regulation (EC) No 1907/2006 (REACH), either directly or via an EU REACH Only Representative.

Materials in contact with food

Products intended to be in contact with food, or products with respect to which contact with food can reasonably be expected, such as kitchen implements, cutlery and food packaging, must be produced in accordance with the general principles and detailed procedures of good manufacturing practice (GMP). Regulation (EC) No 2023/2006 lays down the quality assurance requirements, quality control system and the related record-keeping duties. All Suppliers/Producers must provide evidence to Albert Česká republika of compliance with GMP.

In addition, all materials coming into contact with food must be safe and must comply with the requirements of Regulation (EC) No 1935/2004 on materials and articles intended to come into contact with food as well as the European Law or the national legislation concerning food packaging and food contact products. All Suppliers/Producers must submit the Declaration of Conformity in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.

Non-Food Producers certification

The Suppliers of high risk products must be certified for the relevant categories of products, as follows:*

- GMP for human food and animal feed: 21 CFR 110 or GFSI.
- GMP for dietary supplements: 21 CFR 111, 173 NSF/ANSI standard, 306 NSF GMP Guideline for Athletic Banned Substances, NPA GMP or UL GMP standard for dietary supplements.
- GMP for finished pharmaceuticals: 21 CFR 210, 211, GMP for finished pharmaceuticals or UL GMP for OTC drugs.
- GMP for medical devices: 21 CFR 820 Quality System Requirements (QSR), ISO 13485, CMDCAS (Canada) or UL GMP for medical devices.
- GMP for cosmetics: 21 CR 700, ISO 22716 (cosmetics GMP) or UL GMP for cosmetics.
- All/various: BRC Global Standard for Consumer Products, IFS (International Featured Standards) for household and personal care, SGS audits of non-food industries or HPC 420.

* For certain categories of non-food products, there are no auditing standards. The requirement for independent laboratory testing is just an acceptable alternative scenario in these cases.

Declaration of Conformity

Every batch of non-food products delivered to Albert Česká republika must be accompanied with a declaration of conformity containing the following information:

- Product (designation, batch number and product image);
- Name and address of the Supplier/Producer;
- References to the harmonized standards used or the specifications with respect to which conformity is declared (including national legislation);
- All the tests performed to evidence conformity with the applicable laws and regulations;
- Name and address of the third party testing laboratory;
- Where required by the law the entity notified (name, number) which performed an ES-type testing (action description) and issued the certification.

All Suppliers/Producers must be able to present to Albert Česká republika the testing results/protocol on request.

Before the production and delivery of non-food products, Albert Česká republika must approve the AQL (Acceptable Quality Level) parameters and specifications of the submitted samples. The control reports and reference samples must be available on request.

Cosmetic products

If a product is subject to Regulation (EC) No 1223/2009 on cosmetic products, all Suppliers assume the liability for the product (and indemnify Albert Česká republika). The complete product information file (PIF) must be handed over to Albert Česká republika after contract execution and uploaded to ImpactBuying product specifications database.

Medical devices

The notified body must approve the technical documentation and clinical evaluation documentation in accordance with Regulation (EU) 2017/745 and/or 2017/746. The approval must be submitted to the Quality Department and uploaded to ImpactBuying product specifications database.

3 **Product integrity**

3.1 FAR (Fraud Approach Regime)

Albert Česká republika takes seriously the potential reputational risk connected with misleading labelling as to the origin or composition of products which it buys for sale to its customers and has relevant control mechanisms and safeguards in place. For all subcomponents purchased to complete the final Retail Brand Goods products, we require the submission of the relevant manufacturing certification before and during the delivery to procure full documentation of conformity of the products with the agreed product specifications.

4 Sensory and laboratory product evaluation

Albert Česká republika regularly evaluates and compares its Retail Brand Goods products including sensory and laboratory evaluation. Sensory and laboratory evaluation /testing/ is performed during the supplier selection process and the NPD process (before introduction to the market) and, subsequently, at various stages of the product life cycle.

The sensory product evaluation during the product life cycle, together with laboratory analyses, assess the quality consistency of subsequent deliveries after the NPD process and introduction of the product to the market. The responsible Albert Česká republika Sourcing Manager, in cooperation with the Quality Manager, decide on testing frequency and the selection of products for sensory and/or laboratory testing.

In the case of discrepancies, the Supplier is immediately alerted and, depending on the seriousness of the issue, an acceptable solution is agreed with the Supplier.

5 Sustainability

5.1 Sustainability principles

Albert Česká republika emphasizes business sustainability principles which are reflected in our basic policies and developed and embodied in the related compliance documentation.

In the area of "product integrity" we define and further develop sustainable approaches, especially in the following areas where the Provider commitment is required:

- A) Critical commodities
- B) Biodiversity
- C) Animal welfare
- D) Packaging
- E) Plastics
- F) Climate protection
- A) Critical commodities
- Cocoa
 - All cocoa and chocolate Albert Česká republika Retail Brand Goods products are certified by the Rainforest Alliance [1] on a mass-balance model.
 - All Albert Česká republika Retail Brand Goods products containing an equivalent of 5% or more of cocoa beans are certified by the Rainforest Alliance on a mass-balance model.
 - All Albert Česká republika Retail Brand Goods products containing an equivalent of less than 5% of cocoa beans, but where cocoa and/or chocolate are an identifiable component or form part of the Retail Brand Goods product name, will also be subject to required Rainforest Alliance certification in the future. The timetable for accomplishing cocoa certification for these products will subsequently be specified.
 - All organic cocoa in Albert Česká republika's products must be organic and certified by Fairtrade/Rainforest Alliance.
- Coffee
 - All Retail Brand Goods coffee products must be certified by Rainforest Alliance, ideally at 100%. Where 100% certification is not possible, only the claim of the highest allowable content of non-certified ingredients is acceptable.
 - All Retail Brand Goods coffee products containing an equivalent of less than 5% of coffee but having at least an identifiable component thereof (> 1%), must also be certified by Rainforest Alliance.
 - o All Organic Coffee Retail Brand Goods products must be certified as such and, in addition, have a Fairtrade/Rainforest Alliance certification.
- Tea
 - All tea products must be certified by Rainforest Alliance.
 - All Retail Brand Goods camellia sinensis-based tea products, including flavoured or aromatised tea and Rooibos, must also be Rainforest Alliance certified.
 - All Albert organic tea Retail Brand Goods products and Albert Excellent tea Retail Brand Goods products must be certified as organic products and must also be Fairtrade/Rainforest Alliance certified.
- Palm oil
 - Ahold Delhaize is a member of the Roundtable on Sustainable Palm Oil (RSPO) and makes every effort to make the palm oil production more sustainable.
 - The aim of Albert Česká republika is to use, in Albert Česká republika Retail Brand Goods, only RSPO certified segregated palm oil and RSPO certified derivatives (segregated or massbalance model) coming from RSPO Certified Supply Chain Suppliers. This means that every Supplier Retail Brand Goods product containing palm oil or palm kernel oil must be a RSPO member, hold the RSPO Supply Chain Certification and use, in the Albert Česká republika Retail Brand Goods products, RSPO certified components.
 - This applies to any palm oil, palm fat, palm kernel oil and all their derivatives for all food and

non-food products.

- Soy
- All Albert Česká republika Retail Brand Goods meat and processed meat (pork, beef, chicken), commercial eggs and dairy products (including cheese) come from animals fed by feed in which the use of South American Soy is compensated for by the purchase of RTRS (Roundtable on Responsible Soy) credits.
- All soy, as a component of Retail Brand Goods products, is grown in accordance with responsible production principles. The term "grown in accordance with responsible production principles" means here: soy originating from the European Union or the United States, or Canada, soy certified against the Pro Terra standard, or South American Soy on which RTRS compensation credits were bought.
- Seafood
 - All Albert Česká republika Retail Brand Goods products containing seafood and products where fish is the only or the main ingredient must have a Marine Stewardship Council (MSC) certification or Aquaculture Stewardship Council (ASC) certification or a similar Global Sustainable Seafood Initiative (GSSI) certification.
 - Products for which MSC, ASC or GSSI certification is not available should come from credible Fishery/Aquaculture Improvement Projects.
- Wood and wood fibre
 - All Albert Česká republika Retail Brand Goods products made from wood or wood fibre, or containing wood fibre, must have a Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) certification or the Programme for the Endorsement of Forest Certification (PEFC) certification.
 - All Albert Česká republika environmentally friendly paper products must be recycled in accordance with the Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) rules and certified against an environment protection scheme standard.
 - Products from wood/fibre of original tropical hardwood are not permitted.
 - The Suppliers of Albert Česká republika Retail Brand Goods must be able to evidence that wood (wood-derived) products/components supplied to Albert Česká republika do not come from illegal, unreported or unregulated sources.

B) Biodiversity

- Water source protection
 - Albert Česká republika is aware of the need to define the terms of primary agricultural production, and subsequent implementation into agricultural products processing, so as to take into proper consideration the general water source protection requirements.
 - Relying on the existing knowledge and the available (now or at any time in the future) water source protection technologies, Albert Česká republika will address, individually and later collectively, its Suppliers to encourage them to take a responsible approach to water source protection by the use of tried technologies and best practices.
 - Initially, Albert Česká republika has selected projects in the area of banana and potato production and carp farming.
- Soil protection
 - Albert Česká republika is aware of the need to define the terms of primary agricultural production, and subsequent implementation into agricultural products processing, so as to take into proper consideration the general soil protection requirements.

- Relying on the existing knowledge and the available (now or at any time in the future) soil (as the primary resource) protection technologies, Albert Česká republika will address, individually and later collectively, its Suppliers to encourage them to take a responsible approach to soil protection by the use of tried technologies and best practices. For this purpose, Albert Česká republika actively cooperates with a community of scientists and other experts in this field.
- Initially, Albert Česká republika has selected projects in the area of banana and potato production.
- Pesticide reduction
 - Albert Česká republika is acutely aware of the impacts of the current high-intensity primary agricultural production which uses high volumes of industrial fertilizers and pesticides on the landscape and general biodiversity.
 - The counterbalance to this unfortunate trend is primary agricultural production and food production in the form of Bio-production, which Albert Česká republika intends to continue to strengthen in its product portfolio and encourage its Suppliers to switching to Bio-production.
 - At the same time, Albert Česká republika addresses its Suppliers of fresh fruits and vegetables, using conventional farming, to voluntarily commit to deliver their final products with a maximum of 50% residue limit of pesticides (50% MRL) to Albert.

C) Animal welfare

• Albert Česká republika's specific commitments in the area of animal welfare are contained in the relevant internal policies.

The basis of our approach is respecting the five defined "animal freedoms":

- 1) <u>Freedom from Hunger and Thirst</u> by ready access to fresh water and diet to maintain health and vigour;
- <u>Freedom from Discomfort</u> by providing an appropriate environment including shelter and a comfortable resting area;
- 3) <u>Freedom form Pain, Injury or Disease</u> by prevention or rapid diagnosing and treatment;
- 4) <u>Freedom to Express (most) Normal Behaviour</u> by providing sufficient space, proper facilities, and company of the animal's own kind;
- 5) <u>Freedom from Fear and Distress</u> by ensuring conditions and treatment which avoid mental suffering.

Further stressed, with an appeal for Suppliers' active cooperation, are the issues of animal treatment during the pre-slaughter period and cage free poultry farming and egg production.

- The following additional obligations apply to all farmed animals and hunted wild animals:
 - The supply chain must be transparent.
 - All primary production of farmed animals is equipped with a third party certification under a farm quality assurance scheme.

D) Packaging

 All Albert Česká republika Retail Brand Goods products' packaging must comply with Albert Česká republika's Sustainability Policy for packaging (see the "Sustainable Albert" guide). In 2025, all Albert Česká republika Retail Brand Goods packaging must be 100% recyclable or compostable or reusable without compromising the primary packaging function, i.e. product protection, distribution and promotion. All innovated as well as new products must be assessed with respect to the packaging sustainability policy and the progress made in this area documented. Further information on packaging can be found in the Sustainable Albert Guide.

- Further specific information concerning packaging can also be found in a separate chapter of this document.
- E) Plastics
 - Albert Česká republika is acutely aware of the complex issue of plastics and their impacts on the environment. The existing policy of Albert Česká republika (Sustainable Albert) for plastics, based on 4R approach, will be further developed (including KPI's binding for the entire company and our Suppliers) in the subsequent period. The resulting obligations will transparently be communicated to the Suppliers.

F) Climate protection

- Albert Česká republika considers the significance of climate protection as one of its priorities for the years to come. Increased CO² in Earth's atmosphere significantly contributes to global warming with negative impacts on the environment.
- Albert Česká republika is committed to supporting healthy communities by providing a healthy food system with a low carbon footprint ensuring healthy and sustainable food for future generations. Taking seriously the newest findings on the issue of global warming, we are committed to reducing carbon emissions throughout our value chain.
- The continuous monitoring and reduction of our carbon footprint ought to become a collective goal and an integral part of cooperation between Albert Česká republika and our Suppliers.

6 Health

6.1 General information

Albert Česká republika actively participates in the enhancement of the customers' lifestyle and health by adjusting our Retail Brand Goods' composition and introducing new products and product lines of superior nutritional values in accordance with the latest knowledge of our partners' scientific and expert community.

Albert Česká republika has its own health policy focus and our food products must comply with the following standards:

- low sodium applicable to the entire product portfolio;
- low saturated fatty acids applicable to a particular product portfolio;
- low added sugar applicable to a particular product portfolio;

6.2 Ingredients

Albert Česká republika follows the policy of unnecessary additives reduction in the Retail Brand Goods products. An example is the Nature's Promise product line – the list of the prohibited additives can be found here: naturespromise.cz/wp-content/uploads/2021/02/zakazane_latky.pdf. As for the other Retail Brand Goods products or product lines, the aim is to ensure transparency rather than 'zero additive' content. But all our products must comply with the general principle – no unnecessary additives.

6.3 Vegetarian products

Albert Česká republika espouses the following definition of a 'vegetarian product': The ingredients and additives may not come from animals slaughtered to obtain such ingredients or additives. It is a "all or nothing" policy. In other words, even a small amount of a substance obtained from animals killed to obtain such substance makes the product unsuitable for vegetarians. This includes certain food flavourings, colours and cheese. All eggs must come from at least deep-litter system chicken farming. The effort is to prevent cross-contamination with constituents obtained from slaughtered animals. In the case of animal products containing allergens (e.g. fish), VITAL standards shall apply. If the final product labelling indicates cross-contamination with such allergens, the product may not be considered a vegetarian product. In all other animal product cross-contamination cases, the final product may not exceed the ratio of 0.1% (1 g/kg) of animal components.

6.4 Vegan products

Albert Česká republika espouses the following definition of a 'vegan product': For foodstuffs and other products to be designated as 'vegan', they may not be produced with the aid of live animals or animal origin products. Production and processing steps, technical means and additives are all taken into consideration. In the assessment of whether a product is 'vegan-qualified', Albert looks one-step-back in the supply chain.

The effort is to prevent cross-contamination with animal (derived) products. In the case of animal products containing allergens (e.g. eggs, fish), VITAL standards shall apply. If the final product labelling indicates cross-contamination, the product may not be considered a vegan product. In all other animal product cross-contamination cases, the final product may not exceed the ratio of 0.1% (1 g/kg) of animal components.

7 Packaging

7.1 Packaging

- Materials/packages intended to be brought into contact with food, or already in contact with food and were intended for this purpose, or those which can reasonably be expected to be brought into contact with food or to transfer their constituents to food under normal or foreseeable conditions of use, must be produced in compliance with:
 - Regulation GMP EC No 2023/2006
 - General Regulation EC No 1935/2004
 - Laws and regulations concerning specific usable materials
 - Rules and regulations concerning substances, or groups of substances, used in the manufacture of materials and articles intended to come into contact with food.
 - National legislation applicable to groups of materials and articles not yet covered by EU legislation.
- Packaging must comply with Directive 94/62/EC on packaging and packaging waste.
- Declaration of Conformity must be submitted on request.
- Further information on packaging can be found in "Albert Packaging Guide"

7.2 Product specification administration

- It is the Producers and Suppliers' responsibility to ensure that the information on their products entered in the ImpactBuying database (product specifications) is up-to-date at all times.
- All information on the product composition must correspond to the product composition information given on the product packaging. Albert regularly (several times in a year) tests the required conformity of the information (ImpactBuying DB, product packaging, laboratory-determined composition) on a selected sample of products.

7.3 Labelling

- In relevant cases, the Suppliers of Albert Česká republika Retail Brand Goods products are required to upload in Albert Česká republika's specifications database safety data sheets (SDS) for non-food products and always submit the required certifications (GFSI, BSCI, RFA...) for all product categories.
- The product labelling must in all respects comply with the applicable laws and regulations and transparently, truthfully and understandably convey the information on product composition.
- The labelling information (products, packaging) must be in the language used in the market where the product is sold.
- The labelling must correspond to the up-to-date data contained in the ImpactBuying specifications database.